Public Document Pack



County Offices Newland Lincoln LN1 1YL

3 December 2014

Pensions Committee

A meeting of the Pensions Committee will be held on **Thursday**, **11 December 2014** in **Committee Room One**, **County Offices**, **Newland**, **Lincoln LN1 1YL** at **10.00** am for the transaction of business set out on the attached Agenda.

Yours sincerely

Tony McArdle Chief Executive

Membership of the Pensions Committee
(8 Members of the Council and 3 Co-Opted Members)

Councillors M G Allan (Chairman), R J Phillips (Vice-Chairman), N I Jackson, B W Keimach, C E D Mair, Mrs S Rawlins, A H Turner MBE JP and 1 UK Independence Party Vacancy

Co-Opted Members

Mr A N Antcliff, Employee Representative M G Leaning, District Councils Representative Mr J Grant, Non-District Council Employers Representative

PENSIONS COMMITTEE AGENDA THURSDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2014

Item	Title	Report Reference
1	Apologies for Absence/Replacement Councillors	
2	Declarations of Members' Interests	
3	Minutes from Previous Meetings of the Pensions Committee	
3a	Minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2014	(Pages 5
3b	Minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2014	- 12)
	_	(Pages 13 - 18)
4	CONSIDERATION OF EXEMPT INFORMATION In accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the following agenda items have not been circulated to the press and public on the grounds that they are considered to contain exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. The press and public may be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of this item of business.	
5	Manager Presentation - Threadneedle - Global Equities (To receive a report by Nick Rouse (Investment Manager), which introduces a presentation from Threadneedle, who manage an active portfolio of Global Equities for the Fund)	(Pages 19 - 22)
6	Manager Presentation - Neptune Investment Management - Global Equities (To receive a report by Nick Rouse (Investment Manager), which introduces a presentation from Neptune Investment Management, who manage an active portfolio of Global Equities for the Fund)	(Pages 23 - 26)
7	Manager Presentation - Schroder Investment Management - Global Equities (To receive a report by Nick Rouse (Investment Manager), which introduces a presentation from Schroder Investment Management, who manage an active portfolio of Global Equities for the Fund)	(Pages 27 - 30)

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details

Name: Catherine Wilman Direct Dial 01522 553788

E Mail Address <u>catherine.wilman@lincolnshire.gov.uk</u>

Please Note: for more information about any of the following please contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

- · Business of the meeting
- Any special arrangements
- Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

All papers for council meetings are available on: www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

1



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 24 JULY 2014

PRESENT: COUNCILLOR M G ALLAN (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors R J Phillips (Vice-Chairman), N I Jackson, B W Keimach, Mrs S Rawlins and A H Turner MBE JP

Other members: Andy Antcliffe (Employee Representative), Cllr M Leaning (District Council Representative)

Independent Adviser: Peter Jones

Officers in attendance: Jo Ray (Group Manager, Pensions and Treasury), Nick Rouse (Investment Manager), Catherine Wilman (Democratic Services Officer)

9 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/MEMBER REPLACEMENT

Apologies were received from Councillor C E D Mair.

10 DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor M G Allan requested that a note be made in the minutes that he was currently a contributing member of the Pension Fund as a North Kesteven District Councillor and as a County Councillor.

Mr A Antcliff requested that a note should be made in the minutes that he was currently a contributing member of the Pension Fund as an employee of Lincolnshire County Council.

Councillor R J Phillips declared a personal interest in all items on the agenda as a member of the Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board and as a contributing member of the Pension Fund.

Councillor M Leaning stated he was now a pensioner and in receipt of a pension from the fund.

11 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE HELD ON 29 MAY 2014

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 May 2014 be agreed and signed by the

Chairman as a correct record.

12 INDEPENDENT ADVISOR'S REPORT

Consideration was given to a report by Peter Jones, the Committee's Independent Advisor, which provided a market commentary on the current state of global investment markets.

Inflation worldwide was too low to be healthy. It was currently below 2% in the US and UK inflation had gone down quite quickly in recent months. However, wage inflation had meant that China was not likely to be a cheap producer of goods any longer.

It was expected that the Bank of England base rate would begin to rise shortly.

RESOLVED

That the update be noted.

13 PENSION FUND UPDATE REPORT

Consideration was given to a report which updated the Committee on current issues and Fund matters over the quarter ending 31 March 2014.

It was noted that the Fund's ten largest single company investments were the same companies as the previous quarter. A request was noted for the full list of holdings to be produced for the Committee. It was agreed to present it at Committee once a year.

Voting had been relatively guiet over the guarter.

Councillor Jackson updated the Committee on the most recent meeting of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum. The Scheme Governance Regulations were discussed.

There was discussion about the ongoing issue with IRFS reporting requirements and whether banks were fully showing debts on statements. There had been extensive discussion in the UK and US about the legality of the accounting process. The issue was currently in a pre-pre-judicial review stage.

It was highlighted that the contract with Mouchel to provide Pensions Administration services to the Fund would end on 31 March 2015. Committee members had already been notified by email that West Yorkshire Pension Fund had been chosen as the preferred provider for pension administration services from 1 April 2015. A project board and team had been set up to help manage the transfer.

Employers within the scheme had been informed, but not members of the Fund. Members should not experience any change in the service, except for different contact details.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

14 <u>INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT REPORT</u>

The Committee considered a report which covered the management of the Lincolnshire Pension Fund assets over the period from 1 January to 31 March 2014 and the main points of the report were highlighted by the council's Investment Manager.

Hymans Robertson's view on each manager was included in the report.

It was reported that Neptune had seen a disappointing first quarter, as a result of concerns relating to the global economy affecting their holdings. Performance had improved in the latter half of the second quarter.

It was reported that Alex Tedder had joined Schroder's as the Head of Global Equities, however it was impossible to know at this stage whether this would have any impact at the portfolio level. The situation would be clearer by the next meeting of the Committee.

Morgan Stanley Global Brands Fund had underperformed, however this had been expected given their investment approach and in their view, Hymans Robertson felt the Global Brands strategy had a long and impressive enough track record with a well thought out investment approach.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

15 PENSION ADMINISTRATION REPORT

Consideration was given to a quarterly report by the pension administrator from Mouchel. Stuart Duncombe, the Communications Coordinator was present to take the Committee through the report.

It was highlighted that six out of 21 performance indicators had dipped below 100% in the period March to May 2014. It was explained this had been due to the late issuance of the Transitional Regulations, which resulted in a period when the pensions unit was not in a position to calculate benefits and be confident that they were correct.

This issue was likely to cause a ripple effect in other indicators in the coming months.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

16 <u>UK EQUITY PORTFOLIO ANNUAL REPORT</u>

The Committee considered the annual report covering the performance of the UK Equity index-tracking portfolio, which was managed internally, for the year ended 31 March 2014. The Investment Manager summarised the report for Members

The objective of the portfolio was to deliver the total return of the MSCI UK IMI index +/-0.5% pa. This was to be achieved while maintaining a predicted portfolio tracking error within 0.5% of the index.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

17 ANNUAL REPORT ON THE FUND'S PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Consideration was given to a report which outlined the performance of the Fund's property and related investments for the year ended 31 March 2014. The Investment Manager summarised the report and the following points were noted:

- The UK Commercial Property Investments had returned above the benchmarks since inception;
- The retail industry had undergone huge changes due to online sales. There
 was a high chance that retail properties may not be used as shops again once
 their businesses had closed;

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

18 PENSION FUND DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Consideration was given to a report which provided the Committee with the draft Annual Report and Accounts for the Pension Fund.

The Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014 would shortly be presented to the Audit Committee, along with the Council's Annual Report and Accounts, however the Council's external auditors KPMG had requested that the report be approved by the Pensions Committee first.

Once approved by the Pensions Committees, the report would be signed off by the auditors and taken to the September Audit Committee. Once opinion has been given, the Report and Accounts will be made available to all Councillors. Additionally, the report would be available on the Pension Fund website.

RESOLVED

That the draft Annual Report and Accounts be approved and that delegated authority be given to officers to add an addendum to the accounts to meet additional CIPFA reporting requirements, if needed.

19 PENSION FUND POLICIES REVIEW

A report was considered which brought to the Committee the main policies of the Pension Fund for review. As the Administering Authority of the Lincolnshire Pension Fund, the Pensions Committee was required to review a number of key policy documents annually, the last review being in July 2013.

There had been minimal changes to the policies in the intervening year and therefore the Committee approved the policies for another 12 months.

RESOLVED

That the policies be agreed and the report be noted.

20 PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER

The Committee considered a report which presented the Pension Fund Risk Register for annual review and it was reported that there were currently no red risks.

The end of the council's contract with Mouchel was approaching and the project managing the transfer to the new pensions administration provider had its own risk register.

If changes in risks were identified, they would be highlighted in a quarterly update. Changes in risk could be plotted on a risk matrix and Jo Ray offered to complete this for the Committee's next meeting, should any risks change.

RESOLVED

That the risk register be agreed.

21 <u>DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT (DCLG)</u> DRAFT SCHEME GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS

Consideration was given to the draft Local Government Pension Scheme Governance regulations issued by the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) as part of the Public Services Pensions Act 2013 (PSPA 2013)

PSPA 2013 effected a number of changes to public service pension schemes, some of which would impact on the governance of such schemes and the changes would come into force in April 2015. Of the changes to be made:

- Local pensions boards (PSPA Boards) would be introduced whose role would be to assist in administering authorities to ensure compliance with the LGPS regulations;
- A national scheme advisory board would be set up, and be responsible for providing advice to the Secretary of State on the desirability of making changes to the LGPS.

Officers felt the Council's scheme already had good governance in place and the Local Pensions Boards required by the Act had a "one size fits all" structure, not all of which needed to be implemented by the Council but was required to be in place nevertheless.

The Pensions Committee would continue as normal and its role would not change; the Local Pensions Board would run parallel to it.

The consultation provided two alternatives relating to how procedures would be established for the Local Pensions Boards and was asking authorities to indicate their preferred method:

- For local authorities, Part 6 of the Local Government Act could be made to apply to the LPB as if it was a local authority committee, or
- Each administering authority determined its own procedures.

The Group Manager, Pensions and Treasury, would respond to the consultation on behalf of the committee and Members' views were sought to feed into the response. The following comments were made:

- It was felt that potential Board members would be hard to meet the criteria set out in the Act;
- It was suggested that an East Midlands pension board would be more effective than lots of smaller local ones. This view could be incorporated into the response, however the Act specifically required a Local Pensions Board for each Fund.

The Committee was taken through the suggested responses to the consultation, as detailed in the report. The Committee agreed with all suggested responses and added the following comments:

- Response 25 Employee events were slightly too infrequent. This had been the feedback after the previous employee event, with a request to have more of them;
- Response 27 The training schedule provided for the Committee was very comprehensive and setting up a minimum level of required knowledge would be a good suggestion. Training in pensions related issues was an ongoing process which could take many years.

RESOLVED

- 1. That the report be noted and the suggested response to the consultation be agreed;
- 2. That the Assistant Director of Resources and the Group Manager, Pensions and Treasury work with Democratic Services and legal Services Officers to progress the requirements.

22 REVIEW OF INVESTMENT STRATEGY

A report was considered which introduced the review of the investment strategy by Hymans Robertson, the Fund's Investment Consultant, following the 2013 Triennial Valuation.

Following the reappointment of Hymans Robertson in December 2013, the company was asked to undertake an asset liability study based on the 2013 Triennial Valuation.

The setting of the high level asset allocation was the most important investment decision the Committee was required to make. Generally 80% of the return of the fund was generated by the asset allocation, with the remaining 20% generated by the performance of managers.

A presentation was received from Paul Potter from Hymans Robertson which provided a series of options to the Committee looking at a range of funding level outcomes, based on the ratio of growth assets to low risk assets.

A recommendation of the report was to create a working group of officers, committee members and the Independent Advisor to consider the detailed asset allocation for the Fund and to report recommendations to the Committee.

Councillor N I Jackson volunteered to be a member of the working group and Jo Ray would email the Committee to seek further members.

RESOLVED

1. That the high level asset allocation strategy for the fund be agreed;

2. That a working group of officers, committee members and the Independent Advisor be set up to consider the detailed asset allocation for the Fund and to report recommendations to the Committee.

The meeting closed at 12.50 pm

1



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 9 OCTOBER 2014

PRESENT: COUNCILLOR M G ALLAN (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors R J Phillips (Vice-Chairman), N I Jackson, B W Keimach, C E D Mair, Mrs S Rawlins and A H Turner MBE JP

Officers in attendance:- Stuart Duncombe (Pensions Administrator – Mouchel), Jo Ray (Pensions and Treasury Manager), Nick Rouse (Investments Manager), Catherine Wilman (Democratic Services Officer)

In attendance: Peter Jones (Independent Financial Advisor)

23 APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

No apologies were received.

24 DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor M G Allan requested that a note be made in the minutes that he was currently a contributing member of the Pension Fund as a North Kesteven District Councillor and as a County Councillor.

Mr A Antcliff requested that a note should be made in the minutes that he was currently a contributing member of the Pension Fund as an employee of Lincolnshire County Council.

Councillor M Leaning stated he was now a pensioner and in receipt of a pension from the fund.

Councillor R J Phillips declared a personal interest in all items on the agenda as a member of the Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board and as a contributing member of the Pension Fund.

25 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE HELD ON 24 JULY 2014

Due to an administrative error, the minutes from the meeting of the Pensions Committee held on 24 July 2014 could not be ratified by the Committee and would be submitted to the Committee at its next meeting on 11 December 2014.

2 PENSIONS COMMITTEE 9 OCTOBER 2014

26 <u>INDEPENDENT ADVISOR'S REPORT</u>

Consideration was given to a report by Peter Jones, the Committee's Independent Advisor which provided a market commentary on the current state of global investment markets.

The UK and US economies forecast economic growth was 3% per annum, but remained fragile. Investors had little confidence in a robust economic future, outside the US and the UK, and were concerned about how durable it was in those two countries beyond 2015.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

27 PENSION FUND UPDATE REPORT

The Committee considered a report which updated Members on current issues and Fund matters over the guarter ending 30 June 2014.

Councillor N I Jackson updated the Committee following meetings of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum.

It was reported that the transfer of pensions administration from Mouchel to West Yorkshire Pension Fund was going well. The Collaboration Board had now had the first of its meetings which would be held quarterly. A satellite office for West Yorkshire Pension Fund would be located within the main building of County Offices. There was still a substantial amount of work to do before the transition in April 2015.

It was noted that Councillor Mrs S Rawlins joined the meeting.

Pensions staff previously employed by Mouchel would transfer to West Yorkshire Pension Fund and be able to join their pension scheme which was administrated by City of Bradford Metropolitan Council.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

28 <u>INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT REPORT</u>

Consideration was given to a report which updated the Committee on the management of the Lincolnshire Pension Fund assets over the period from 1 April to 30 June 2014. The Investment Manager summarised the report for the Committee's benefit.

Neptune had previously indicated they would move back into emerging markets, which was done in Quarter 2 and returned 3.9% against a benchmark of 3.2%.

It was confirmed that all figures quoted in the report were gross of fees. The cost of managing the in-house portfolio was around 0.02% of the assets under management.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

29 PENSION ADMINISTRATION REPORT

The Committee considered a quarterly report by the pension administrator, Mouchel which provided an update on current administration issues. Stuart Duncombe from Mouchel was present.

The performance results for the period June 2014 to August 2014 extracted from the task management module of the administration system showed that three task areas were underperforming slightly, as a result of the scheme changes, but were expecting to improve.

There had been no praise or complaints received during the quarter.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

30 MANAGER REPORT - INVESCO ASSET MANAGEMENT - GLOBAL EX UK ENHANCED INDEX EQUITY PORTFOLIO

The Committee was invited to consider a presentation from Invesco Asset Managers who maintained the Global ex UK Enhanced Index Equity Portfolio. Michael Fraikin, Director Portfolio Management and Hugh Ferrand, Head of Institutional Sales and Service, were present.

Within the 9 years that Invesco had been running the Global Equities Mandate for the Fund, it had consistently achieved the target set and steadily outperformed. It was currently ahead of the benchmark by 1% and had consistently delivered since inception.

Following the presentation, questions from the Committee were answered:

 The portfolio's annual return of 1.6% was 0.6% over the requirements of the mandate. This return had been achieved within the allowed risk tolerance and no additional risk had been taken;

4 PENSIONS COMMITTEE 9 OCTOBER 2014

- The process was run in a quantitative manner, however the individuals managing the funds oversaw the output of the model and make the final investment decisions;
- There was a risk management function embedded within the team and overseen by another risk function within Invesco to ensure funds were performing within the specifications of all portfolios;
- Invesco had agreed the expected risk of the portfolio with the Committee. If it became advantageous to take more risk to meet the required return target, it would be discussed with the Committee before proceeding.

RESOLVED

That the presentation and report be noted.

31 PENSION FUND EXTERNAL AUDIT ISA 260 REPORT

Consideration was given to a report which brought the ISA 260 report to those charged with governance of the Pension Fund, submitted by the external auditors for the Council, KPMG.

Following a question, it was noted that exchange rates were taken from the Bloomberg system.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

32 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT ANNUAL REPORT

A report was considered which set out the Pension Fund's longer term investment performance, for the period ending 31st March 2014.

At a previous meeting, the Committee had agreed to continue using the WM Local Authority Universe to measure the performance of the Fund against other authorities. An update of the Fund's performance within the Universe was included in the report.

The long term performance analysis showed good performance overall.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

33 ASSET ALLOCATION

A report was considered that updated the Committee following the first meeting of the working group to discuss asset allocation, following the asset liability study undertaken by Hymans Robertson.

Peter Jones, the Committee's independent financial advisor gave a short presentation on asset allocation.

The Committee had agreed the high level allocation between growth assets and low risk assets at its July meeting. The working group was set up to review the detail beneath those asset areas. Its first meeting had been held on 22 September 2014. An invitation to join the working group was extended to the Committee as there was currently only one Councillor representative.

The working group had made a number of proposals to the Committee which were outlined in the report. Each proposal was discussed in turn and all were agreed.

It was noted that equities was a priority for the working group as it would have the biggest impact and therefore this would be the first area to cover.

Members of the Committee would be notified of the date for the next working group.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

The meeting closed at 12.35pm.



Agenda Item 5

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 6

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

